

### Montesano School District No. 66

#### **District-Wide Student Handbook**

#### **Table of Contents**

Non-Discrimination Statement	2
Notification of Rights under FERPA for Elementary and Secondary School	3
All District School Board Policies	5
Sexual Harassment of Students Prohibited Policy 3205	6
Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying Policy 3207	6
What is HIB?	7
How can I make a report or complaint about HIB?	8
What happens after I make a report about HIB?	8
What is the investigation process?	8
What are the next steps if I disagree with the outcome?	8
Our School Stands Against Discrimination	9
What is discriminatory harassment?	9
What is sexual harassment?	9
What should my school do about discriminatory and sexual harassment?	10
What can I do if I'm concerned about discrimination or harassment?	10
What happens after I file a discrimination complaint?	10
What are the next steps if I disagree with the outcome?	11
l already submitted a HIB complaint – what will my school do?	11
Who else can help with HIB or Discrimination Concerns?	11
Our School is Gender-Inclusive	12
Homeless Students - Enrollment Rights and Services Policy 3115	13
Nondiscrimination – Students Policy 3210	13
Student Discipline Policy 3241	13
Suggested Syllabi Al Language	13
Students and Telecommunication Devices Policy 3245	13
Regulation of Dangerous Weapons on School Premises Policy 4210	13

#### **Non-Discrimination Statement**

The Montesano School District No. 66 does not discriminate in any programs or activities on the basis of race, religion, creed, color, national origin, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, sex, sexual orientation, gender expression or identity, marital status, the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability, or the use of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability. The district will provide equal access to school facilities to the Boy Scouts of America and all other designated youth groups. District programs will be free from sexual harassment. Auxiliary aids and services will be provided upon request to individuals with disabilities. The following employee(s) have been designated to handle questions and complaints of alleged discrimination:

Concerns about discrimination: Civil Rights Coordinator: Shawn Brown, Student Services Director, <a href="mailto:sbrown@monteschools.org">sbrown@monteschools.org</a> - 502 E. Spruce Ave, Montesano, WA 98563, Phone: (360) 249-3942

Concerns about sex discrimination, including sexual harassment: Title IX Coordinator: Dan Winter, Superintendent, <a href="mailto:dwinter@monteschools.org">dwinter@monteschools.org</a> - 502 E. Spruce Ave, Montesano, WA 98563, Phone: (360) 249-3942

Concerns about disability discrimination: Section 504 Coordinator: Shawn Brown, Student Services Director, <a href="mailto:sbrown@monteschools.org">sbrown@monteschools.org</a> - 502 E. Spruce Ave, Montesano, WA 98563, Phone: (360) 249-3942

Concerns about discrimination based on gender identity: Gender-Inclusive Schools Coordinator: Stephanie Klinger, sklinger@monteschools.org - 502 E. Spruce Ave, Montesano, WA 98563, Phone: (360) 249-3942

#### Notification of Rights under FERPA for Elementary and Secondary School

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords parents and students who are 18 years of age or older ("eligible students") certain rights with respect to the student's education records. These rights are:

- 1. The right to inspect and review the student's education records within 45 days after the day the Montesano School District receives a request for access. Parents or eligible students who wish to inspect their child's or their education records should submit to the school principal [or appropriate school official] a written request that identifies the records they wish to inspect. The school official will make arrangements for access and notify the parent or eligible student of the time and place where the records may be inspected.
- 2. The right to request the amendment of the student's education records that the parent or eligible student believes are inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the student's privacy rights under FERPA Parents or eligible students who wish to ask the [School] to amend their child's or their education record should write the school principal [or appropriate school official], clearly identify the part of the record they want to be changed, and specify why it should be changed. If the school decides not to amend the record as requested by the parent or eligible student, the school will notify the parent or eligible student of the decision and of their right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the parent or eligible student when notified of the right to a hearing.
- 3. The right to provide written consent before the school discloses personally identifiable information (PII) from the student's education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent. One exception, which permits disclosure without consent, is disclosure to school officials with legitimate educational interests. The criteria for determining who constitutes a school official and what constitutes a legitimate educational interest must be set forth in the school's or school district's annual notification for FERPA rights. A school official typically includes a person employed by the school or school district as an administrator, supervisor, instructor, or support staff member (including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit personnel) or a person serving on the school board. A school official also may include a volunteer, contractor, or consultant who, while not employed by the school, performs an institutional service or function for which the school would otherwise use its own employees and who is under the direct control of the school with respect to the use and maintenance of PII from education records, such as an attorney, auditor, medical consultant, or therapist; a parent or student volunteering to serve on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee; or a parent, student, or other volunteer assisting another school official in performing his or her tasks. A school official typically has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsibility Upon request, the Montesano School District discloses education records without consent to officials of another school or school district in which a student seeks or intends to enroll, or is already enrolled if the disclosure is for purposes of the student's enrollment or transfer. [NOTE: FERPA requires a school or school district to make a reasonable attempt to notify the parent or student of the records request unless it states in its annual notification that it intends to forward records on request or the disclosure is initiated by the parent or eligible student

4. The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the [School] to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA are:

Family Policy Compliance Office, U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202

See the list below of the disclosures that elementary and secondary schools may make without consent. FERPA permits the disclosure of PII from students' education records, without consent of the parent or eligible student, if the disclosure meets certain conditions found in § 99.31 of the FERPA regulations. Except for disclosures to school officials, disclosures related to some judicial orders or lawfully issued subpoenas, disclosures of directory information, and disclosures to the parent or eligible student, § 99.32 of the FERPA regulations requires the school to record the disclosure. Parents and eligible students have a right to inspect and review the record of disclosures. A school may disclose PII from the education records of a student without obtaining prior written consent of the parents or the eligible student –

- To other school officials, including teachers, within the educational agency or institution
  whom the school has determined to have legitimate educational interests. This includes
  contractors, consultants, volunteers, or other parties to whom the school has outsourced
  institutional services or functions, provided that the conditions listed in § 99.31(a)(1)(i)(B)(1) (a)(1)(i)(B)(3) are met. (§ 99.31(a)(1))
- To officials of another school, school system, or institution of postsecondary education where the student seeks or intends to enroll, or where the student is already enrolled if the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's enrollment or transfer, subject to the requirements of § 99.34. (§ 99.31(a)(2))
- To authorized representatives of the U. S. Comptroller General, the U. S. Attorney General, the U.S. Secretary of Education, or State and local educational authorities, such as the State educational agency (SEA) in the parent or eligible student's State. Disclosures under this provision may be made, subject to the requirements of § 99.35, in connection with an audit or evaluation of Federal- or State-supported education programs, or for the enforcement of or compliance with Federal legal requirements that relate to those programs. These entities may make further disclosures of PII to outside entities that are designated by them as their authorized representatives to conduct any audit evaluation, or enforcement or compliance activity on their behalf, if applicable requirements are met. (§§ 99.31(a)(3) and 99.35)
- In connection with financial aid for which the student has applied or which the student has received, if the information is necessary for such purposes as to determine eligibility for the aid, determine the amount of the aid, determine the conditions of the aid, or enforce the terms and conditions of the aid. (§ 99.31(a)(4))
- To State and local officials or authorities to whom information is specifically allowed to be reported or disclosed by a State statute that concerns the juvenile justice system and the system's ability to effectively serve, prior to adjudication, the student whose records were released, subject to § 99.38. (§ 99.31(a)(5))

- To organizations conducting studies for, or on behalf of, the school, in order to: (a) develop, validate, or administer predictive tests; (b) administer student aid programs; or (c) improve instruction, if applicable requirements are met. (§ 99.31(a)(6))
- To accrediting organizations to carry out their accrediting functions. (§ 99.31(a)(7))
- To parents of an eligible student if the student is a dependent for IRS tax purposes. (§ 99.31(a)(8))
- To comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena if applicable requirements are met. (§ 99.31(a)(9))
- To appropriate officials in connection with a health or safety emergency, subject to § 99.36. (§ 99.31(a)(10)
- Information the school has designated as "directory information" if applicable requirements under §99.37 are met. (§ 99.31(a)(11))
- To an agency caseworker or other representative of a State or local child welfare agency or tribal organization who is authorized to access a student's case plan when such agency or organization is legally responsible, in accordance with State or tribal law, for the care and protection of the student in foster care placement. (20 U.S.C. § 1232g(b)(1)(L))
- To the Secretary of Agriculture or authorized representatives of the Food and Nutrition Service for purposes of conducting program monitoring, evaluations, and performance measurements of programs authorized under the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act or the Child Nutrition Act of 1966, under certain conditions. (20 U.S.C. § 1232g(b)(1)(K)

#### All District School Board Policies

Click here to go to the website

#### **Sexual Harassment of Students Prohibited Policy 3205**

■ 3205+Sexual+Harassment+of+Students+Prohibited+-2018(2)

The following district staff are designated to receive Complaints which may be submitted by mail, fax, e-mail or hand-delivery:

Concerns about discrimination: Civil Rights Coordinator: Shawn Brown, Student Services Director, <a href="mailto:sbrown@monteschools.org">sbrown@monteschools.org</a> - 502 E. Spruce Ave Montesano, WA 98563, Phone: (360) 249-3942

Concerns about sex discrimination, including sexual harassment: Title IX Coordinator: Dan Winter, Superintendent, <a href="mailto:dwinter@monteschools.org">dwinter@monteschools.org</a> - 502 E. Spruce Ave Montesano, WA 98563, Phone: (360) 249-3942

Concerns about disability discrimination: Section 504 Coordinator: Shawn Brown, Student Services Director, <a href="mailto:sbrown@monteschools.org">sbrown@monteschools.org</a> - 502 E. Spruce Ave Montesano, WA 98563, Phone: (360) 249-3942

Concerns about discrimination based on gender identity: Gender-Inclusive Schools Coordinator: Stephanie Klinger, <a href="mailto:sklinger@monteschools.org">sklinger@monteschools.org</a> - 502 E. Spruce Ave Montesano, WA 98563, Phone: (360) 249-3942

#### Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying Policy 3207

■ 3207-Prohibition of Harassment Intimidation and Bullying of Students

Website - https://www.monteschools.org/school-board-prohibition-of-harrassment

Concerns about discrimination: Civil Rights Coordinator: Shawn Brown, Student Services Director, <a href="mailto:sbrown@monteschools.org">sbrown@monteschools.org</a> - 502 E. Spruce Ave Montesano, WA 98563, Phone: (360) 249-3942

Concerns about sex discrimination, including sexual harassment: Title IX Coordinator: Dan Winter, Superintendent, <a href="mailto:dwinter@monteschools.org">dwinter@monteschools.org</a> - 502 E. Spruce Ave Montesano, WA 98563, Phone: (360) 249-3942

Concerns about disability discrimination: Section 504 Coordinator: Shawn Brown, Student Services Director, <a href="mailto:sbrown@monteschools.org">sbrown@monteschools.org</a> - 502 E. Spruce Ave Montesano, WA 98563, Phone: (360) 249-3942

Concerns about discrimination based on gender identity: Gender-Inclusive Schools Coordinator: Stephanie Klinger, sklinger@monteschools.org - 502 E. Spruce Ave Montesano, WA 98563, Phone: (360) 249-3942

## A harassment, intimidation, or bullying complaint may also be reported to the following state or federal agencies:

OSPI Equity and Civil Rights Office - 360.725.6162 Email: <a href="mailto:equity@k12.wa.us">equity@k12.wa.us</a> www.k12.wa.us/Equity/default.aspx

Washington State Human Rights Commission - 800.233.3247 www.hum.wa.gov/index.html

Office for Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Education, Region IX - 206.607.1600 Email: OCR.Seattle@ed.gov\_www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/index.html

Department of Justice Community Relations Service - 877.292.3804 www.justice.gov/crt/

Office of the Education Ombudsman - 866.297-2597 Email: <u>OEOinfo@gov.wa.govwww.governor.wa.gov/oeo/default.asp</u>

OSPI Safety Center - 360.725-6044 <a href="https://www.k12.wa.us/SafetyCenter/BullyingHarassment/default.aspx">www.k12.wa.us/SafetyCenter/BullyingHarassment/default.aspx</a>

#### Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying (HIB) Sample Incident Reporting Form

■ 3207F HIB Reporting

# Prohibition of Harassment, Bullying and Intimidation (HIB)

Policy 3207
Harassment Incident Reporting Form
Internet Safety
Non-Discrimination Statement
What is Discrimination - Notice to Parents

## Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying (HIB)

Schools are meant to be safe and inclusive environments where all students are protected from Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying (HIB), including in the classroom, on the school bus, in school sports, and during other school activities. This section defines HIB, explains what to do when you see or experience it, and our school's process for responding to it.

#### What is HIB?

HIB is any intentional electronic, written, verbal, or physical act of a student that:

Physically harms another student or damages their property; Has the effect of greatly interfering with another student's education; or, Is so severe, persistent, or significant that it creates an intimidating or threatening education environment for other students.

HIB generally involves an observed or perceived power imbalance and is repeated multiple times or is highly likely to be repeated. HIB is not allowed, by law, in our schools.

## How can I make a report or complaint about HIB?

**Talk to any school staff member** (consider starting with whoever you are most comfortable with!). You may use our district's reporting form to share concerns about HIB (Harassment Incident Reporting Form) but reports about HIB can be made in writing or verbally. Your report can made anonymously, if you are uncomfortable revealing your identity, or confidentially if you prefer it not be shared with other students involved with the report. No disciplinary action will be taken against another student based **solely** on an anonymous or confidential report.

If a staff member is notified of, observes, overhears, or otherwise witnesses HIB, they must take prompt and appropriate action to stop the HIB behavior and to prevent it from happening again. Our district also has a HIB Compliance Officer (Shawn Brown) that supports prevention and response to HIB.

## What happens after I make a report about HIB?

If you report HIB, school staff must attempt to resolve the concerns. If the concerns are resolved, then no further action may be necessary. However, if you feel that you or someone you know is the victim of unresolved, severe, or persistent HIB that requires further investigation and action, then you should request an official HIB investigation.

Also, the school must take actions to ensure that those who report HIB don't experience retaliation.

## What is the investigation process?

When you report a complaint, the HIB Compliance Officer or staff member leading the investigation must notify the families of the students involved with the complaint and must make sure a prompt and thorough investigation takes place. The investigation must be completed within 5 school days, unless you agree on a different timeline. If your complaint involves circumstances that require a longer investigation, the district will notify you with the anticipated date for their response.

When the investigation is complete, the HIB Compliance Officer or the staff member leading the investigation must provide you with the outcomes of the investigation within 2 school days. This response should include:

A summary of the results of the investigation A determination of whether the HIB is substantiated Any corrective measures or remedies needed Clear information about how you can appeal the decision

## What are the next steps if I disagree with the outcome?

For the student designated as the "targeted student" in a complaint:

If you do not agree with the school district's decision, you may appeal the decision and include any additional information regarding the complaint to the superintendent, or the person assigned to lead the appeal, and then to the school board.

#### For the student designated as the "aggressor" in a complaint:

A student found to be an "aggressor" in a HIB complaint may not appeal the decision of a HIB investigation. They can, however, appeal corrective actions that result from the findings of the HIB investigation.

For more information about the HIB complaint process, including important timelines, please see the district's HIB Policy [3207]

## **Our School Stands Against Discrimination**

Discrimination can happen when someone is treated differently or unfairly because they are part of a **protected class**, including their race, color, national origin, sex, gender identity, gender expression, sexual orientation, religion, creed, disability, use of a service animal, or veteran or military status.

## What is discriminatory harassment?

Discriminatory harassment can include teasing and name-calling; graphic and written statements; or other conduct that may be physically threatening, harmful, or humiliating. Discriminatory harassment happens when the conduct is based on a student's protected class and is serious enough to create a hostile environment. A **hostile environment** is created when conduct is so severe, pervasive, or persistent that it limits a student's ability to participate in, or benefit from, the school's services, activities, or opportunities.

For more information about the district's nondiscrimination policy and procedure, please see

Nondiscrimination Policy 3210

#### What is sexual harassment?

**Sexual harassment** is any unwelcome conduct or communication that is sexual in nature and substantially interferes with a student's educational performance or creates an intimidating or hostile environment. Sexual harassment can also occur when a student is led to believe they must submit to unwelcome sexual conduct or communication to gain something in return, such as a grade or a place on a sports team.

Examples of sexual harassment can include pressuring a person for sexual actions or favors; unwelcome touching of a sexual nature; graphic or written statements of a sexual nature; distributing sexually explicit texts, e-mails, or pictures; making sexual jokes, rumors, or suggestive remarks; and physical violence, including rape and sexual assault.

Our schools do not discriminate based on sex and prohibit sex discrimination in all of our education programs and employment, as required by Title IX and state law.

## What should my school do about discriminatory and sexual harassment?

When a school becomes aware of possible discriminatory or sexual harassment, it must investigate and stop the harassment. The school must address any effects the harassment had on the student at school, including eliminating the hostile environment, and make sure that the harassment does not happen again.

## What can I do if I'm concerned about discrimination or harassment?

**Talk to a Coordinator or submit a written complaint.** You may contact the following school district staff members to report your concerns, ask questions, or learn more about how to resolve your concerns.

Concerns about discrimination: Civil Rights Coordinator: Shawn Brown - sbrown@monteschools.org

Concerns about sex discrimination, including sexual harassment: Title IX Coordinator: Dan Winter - dwinter@monteschools.org

Concerns about disability discrimination: Shawn Brown - sbrown@monteschools.org

Concerns about discrimination based on gender identity: Stephanie Klinger sklinger@monteschools.org

To **submit a written complaint**, describe the conduct or incident that may be discriminatory and send it by mail, fax, email, or hand delivery to the school principal, district superintendent, or civil rights coordinator. Submit the complaint as soon as possible for a prompt investigation, and within one year of the conduct or incident.

### What happens after I file a discrimination complaint?

The Civil Rights Coordinator must make sure a prompt and thorough investigation takes place. The investigation must be completed within 30 calendar days unless you agree to a different timeline. If your complaint involves exceptional circumstances that require a longer investigation, the Civil Rights Coordinator will notify you in writing with the anticipated date for their response.

When the investigation is complete, the school district superintendent or the staff member leading the investigation will send you a written response. This response will include:

A summary of the results of the investigation
A determination of whether the school district failed to comply with civil rights laws
Any corrective measures or remedies needed
Notice about how you can appeal the decision

## What are the next steps if I disagree with the outcome?

If you do not agree with the outcome of your complaint, you may appeal the decision to the School Board of Directors and then to the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI).

I already submitted an HIB complaint – what will my school do?

Harassment, intimidation, or bullying (HIB) can also be discrimination if it's related to a protected class. If you give your school a written report of HIB that involves discrimination or sexual harassment, your school will notify the Civil Rights Coordinator.

## I already submitted a HIB complaint – what will my school do?

Harassment, intimidation, or bullying (HIB) can also be discrimination if it's related to a protected class. If you give your school a written report of HIB that involves discrimination or sexual harassment, your school will notify the Civil Rights Coordinator. The school district will investigate the complaint using both the Nondiscrimination and the HIB Procedures to **fully resolve your complaint**.

## Who else can help with HIB or Discrimination Concerns?

#### Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI)

All reports must start locally at the school or district level. However, OSPI can assist students, families, communities, and school staff with questions about state law, the HIB complaint process, and the discrimination and sexual harassment complaint processes.

OSPI School Safety Center (For questions about harassment, intimidation, and bullying)

Website: ospi.k12.wa.us/student-success/health-safety/school-safety-center

Email: schoolsafety@k12.wa.us

Phone: 360-725-6068

OSPI Equity and Civil Rights Office (For questions about discrimination and sexual harassment)

Website: ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/equity-and-civil-rights

Email: equity@k12.wa.us Phone: 360-725-6162

#### Washington State Governor's Office of the Education Ombuds (OEO)

The Washington State Governor's Office of the Education Ombuds works with families, communities, and schools to address problems together so every student can fully participate and thrive in Washington's K-12 public schools. OEO provides informal conflict resolution tools, coaching, facilitation, and training about family, community engagement, and systems advocacy.

#### Our School is Gender-Inclusive

In Washington, all students have the right to be treated consistent with their gender identity at school. Our school will:

Address students by their requested name and pronouns, with or without a legal name change Change a student's gender designation and have their gender accurately reflected in school records Allow students to use restrooms and locker rooms that align with their gender identity Allow students to participate in sports, physical education courses, field trips, and overnight trips in

accordance with their gender identity

Keep health and education information confidential and private

Allow students to wear clothing that reflects their gender identity and apply dress codes without regard to a student's gender or perceived gender

Protect students from teasing, bullying, or harassment based on their gender or gender identity

To review the district's Gender-Inclusive Schools Policy 3211 visit [https://docs.google.com/document/d/119yv7F453T99K8AaPIrGQQML5o\_RFoHwjnwnU5Opvw4/edit?usp=sh aring]. If you have questions or concerns, please contact the Gender-Inclusive Schools Coordinator:

Stephanie Klinger, sklinger@monteschools.org

#### **Homeless Students - Enrollment Rights and Services Policy 3115**

■ 3115-Students Experiencing Homelessness Enrollment Rights and Services

Montesano School District Homeless Liaison: Shawn Brown , Director of Student Services 502 E. Spruce Ave Montesano, WA 98563 360-249-3924 sbrown@monteschools.org

#### **Nondiscrimination – Students Policy 3210**

■ 3210+Nondiscrimination

#### **District Contacts(s):**

Title IX and Compliance Officer
Dan Winter
360-249-3942
dwinter@monteschools.org

Section 504/ADA Compliance Officer Shawn Brown 360-249-3942 sbrown@monteschools.org

#### **Student Discipline Policy 3241**

■ 3241+-+Student+Discipline

#### Suggested Syllabi Al Language

■ Al Language

#### **Students and Telecommunication Devices Policy 3245**

■ 3245+Students+and+Telecommunication+Devices+06.14 (1)

#### Regulation of Dangerous Weapons on School Premises Policy 4210

■ 4210+Regulation+of+Dangerous+Weapons+on+School+Premises